James K Smith

From: James K Smith

Sent: Monday, 13 February 2017 4:.00 PM

To: Roscoe Taylor; Sonya Bennett; Alun Richards; Margaret Young

Cc: MNPHU-CD; John Piispanen; Jennifer Conroy; metronorthnews; Fraser Gifford
Subject: RE: Gastro outbreak - Sun Princess

Hi Roscoe et al
| have further information regarding this outbreak.

Total cases now 153 (150 passengers, 3 crew). Norovirus identified in POC testing.

Quote from 'below regarding current an board response:

up with ~]in person for a little whi}é
Cheers

James

From: Roscoe Taylor
Sent: Monday, 13 Febru
To: James K Smith; Sony
Cc: MNPHU-CD; Joh
Subject: RE: Gastig #

Richards; Margaret Young
Conroy; metronarthnews
edk - Sun Princess

Thanks James

And just letting you know gt | was about to contact you - This morning we too received the notification fram
DAWR (via Heidi; 1 then called the Maritime Coordination Centre 1300 004 605 ) : the case numbers were

reported to represent 5.3% of passengers. | was advised that if you need to add anything special to the vessel's
“Biosecurity Document” (which used to be called “Approval to Berth”) by way of instructions or restrictions it can be
arranged through you contacting DAWR,

In this circumstance of a recurrent gastro outbreak, | am interested to know whether there is anything extra that
you think could / should be done?

Best wishes

Roscoe
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From: James K Smith

Sent: Monday, 13 February 2017 9:07 AM

To: Sonya Bennett; Roscoe Taylor; Alun Richards; Margaret Young
Cc: MNPHU-CD; John Piispanen; Jennifer Conroy; metronorthnews
Subject: Gastro outbreak - Sun Princess

Hi All

Just letting you know that there is another outhreak on board Sun Princess. This time there are 147 cases (144
passengers and 3 crew members) affected.

The vessel is due to arrive in Brisbane on Thursday for terminal clean and turn-around y I've copied you in

as on call PHP, Margaret).

| don’t have any further details yet on next port, POC testing, etc. | wi ing later this morning.
Will get in touch with DAWR once we have some more information.
Cheers

James

Dr James Smith \@

Public Health Physician

Metro North Public Health Unit

Bryden Street

Windsor Qld 4030

P: (07) 3624 1113

7

James.Smith2@health.gld.gov.au

www.health.gld.gov.au/metronorth

Melrlo North Hospital and Health Service
(| > ) | e |

rurrmeg Feople firs

e | | ‘
n n m follow us on

Your feedback is important have any suggestions, compliments or concerns about the service or advice
provided to you, please le
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James K Smith

From: James K Smith

Sent: Monday, 13 February 2017 9:07 AM

To: Sonya Bennett; Roscoe Taylor; Alun Richards; Margaret Young
Cc: MNPHU-CD; John Piispanen; Jennifer Canroy; metronorthnews
Subject: Gastro outbreak - Sun Princess

Hi All

herggre 147 cases (144

Just letting you know that there is another outbreak on board Sun Princess. This timg
passengers and 3 crew members) affected. '

The vessel is due to arrive in Brisbane on Thursday for terminal clean and turn- nd thencevhy I've copied you in
as on call PHP, Margaret).
| don't have any further details yet on next port, POC testing, etc. | il be calling |ater this morning.

Will get in touch with DAWR cnce we have some more information. @

Cheers

James

Dr James Smith

Public Health Physician

Metro North Public Health Unit
Bryden Streel

Windsor Qld 4030

P: (07) 3624 1113

M
James.Smith2@health.gld.gov.au
www.health.gld.qov.au/metronorth

Metro North Hospital and Healt vice
Putting P -:'-r'-'r‘-l.-f first

ﬂ u m follow u edia

Your feedback is importan
provided to you, plegég

s know by emailing MNPHU_Director@health.qgld.gov.au
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James K Smith

From: James K Smith

Sent: Tuesday, 14 February 2017 1:00 PM

To: ’ _____@carnivalaustralia.com'

Cc: Fraser Gifford; John Piispanen; Megan Young; Mekala Srirajalingam
Subject: RE: Sun Princess_Increase in Gastroenteritis (Norovirus)

Hi|

are reference strains,
syhtypes is circulating in

I've just had a chance to look at the link in your email. The new strains referred to in
i.e. reference labs have undertaken further subtyping of norovirus to look at which g
the community and causing illness in different parts of the country/ world.

So, the article is referring to sub-strains of the major genogroups — there are B pforoyirus subdivisions which are

grouped according to phylogenetic analysis, within which there are a numbe renge sub-strains. Genogroups
1, Il and IV infect humans, although genogroup Il is the variety that causes the Vast a nt of illness in Australia.
pfectious and has a prolonged

In terms of public health action, all norovirus is treated the same as it {s\a i
environmental survival. While there is evidence to suggest differences’in @ e response between genogroups |

nC cally is likely to be minimal. We are

not aware of any ‘super strains’ circulating.

I've spoken with QHFSS about further reference testing. ot formally a reference lab for norovirus,

they can do further sub-typing. There would be a delay of >6 s before any sub-typing results are available.
The virologist | spoke with agreed that you are proba t offlarranging confirmatory testing through the usual
channels (i.e. QML, SNP or another community-patho b addition to confirming your an board POC testing,

SS can ohtain the specimens from the community labs,

| hope this helps. | am happy to talk further with'yaor[ about it.

Cheers

James

From:[ @carnivalaustralia.com]

Sent: Tuesday, 14}
To: James K Smity
Cc: Fraser Giffor€
Subject: RE: Sun

egs_Increase in Gastroenteritis (Norovirus)
Hi James,
| have spoken with Fraser this morning and | will meet him at the ship on Thursday.

| believe the ship has 4 samples that can be off loaded for sub typing. Fraser was going to have a chat to you about it.

We are wondering if we are seeing a new strain onboard, which was discovered in Melbourne last year. There are a
few reports on it, here is one.

http://www.sciencealert.com/scientists-have-discovered-3-new-noroviruses-that-are-causing-gastro-outbreaks

DOH-DL 17/18-015: page o 5:



I'll update you tomorrow or should there be any changes.

kind regards,

Public Health Specialist

Health Services | Holland America Group

Princess Gruises, Holland America Line, Seabourn, P&O Australia, and HAP Alaska

15 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060 ,

pr461 e miaBl | @carnivalaustralia.com

24/7 Public Health Emergency Line: +1-661-753-2355

From: _ James K Smith <James.Smilh2@health.qld.gov.au> @
To: i carnivalausiralia.com" < @carnivalausiralia.com>,

Cc: Fraser Gifford <Fraser.Gifford@health.qld.qov.au>

Date: 14/02/2017 10:08 AM

Subjecl: RE: Sun Princess_Increase in Gaslroenlerilis (Norovirus)

Thank you very much,| &, @
James \
From: @carnivalaustralia.com [mailtg N\
Sent: Tuesday, 14 February 2017 6:51 AM

To: James K Smith

Cc: Fraser Gifford

Subject: RE: Sun Princess_Increase in Ga

) _|@carnivalaustralia.com]

Good morning James,

The AGE response levels are
contained within our an onli
yourself if you make it. If y

ty managewrent system. Suggest | go through it with Fraser on Thursday, and
ike any of it for your records, | can work on getting you some of the documents.

on a downward trend
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Camival Corporate Term

HA Group Term

Description |

Baseline

Level 1

Baseline illness levels observed (e.g., background rates base
for itinerary and voyage length). Standard operating procedur

Elevated

Level 2

For vessels with <700 guest population:
s >3 cases among either passengers or crew With iliness or

For vessels with 2700 guest popula
® >0 cases among either r5 or crew With iliness or

Maximum

Level 3

Significant AGE activity observ w

of reportabie cases reache

attack rate of 2 0.45%, and
a 24-hour period OR;

ith illness onset within 48-hour
onset cases amongst passenger
dg/ at the discretion of the Head of the

xf)irtment

4.4 Qutbreak Management and Control Measures
e The outhreak management and control

o EMR 2002 - Notificationend

EMR 2003 - Overall MApage
EMR 2004 - Commui

| |
Public Health Specialist

Health Services | Holland America Group
Princess Cruises, Holland America Line, Seabourn, P&O Australia, and HAP Alaska
15 Mount Street, North Sydney NSW 2060

p: +61 | m: +61]

leaning and Sanitizing during Outbreaks.

rqod and Beverage during Outbreaks.

D14 - Management of Outbreak Turnarounds.
Ménagement of Continued Precautions and the Return to Routine Operations.

|@carnivalaustralia.com

24/7 Public Health Emergency Line: +1-661-753-2355
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From: James K Smith <James.Smith2@heallh.qgld.qov.au>

To: 1 @carnivalausiralia.com" < @carnivalaustralia.com>, y

Ce: Megan Young <Megan.Youna@heallh.ald.qov.au>, {_____j@hagroup.com" < [@haqroup.com>, " hagroup.com"”

{  @hagroup.com>, " @hagroup.com" < @hagroup.com>, '| @carnivalaustralia.com"

. — @carnivalaustralia.com>, . ___@princesscruises.com" < I@princesscruises.com>, " @princesscruises.com”
{ @princesscruises.com>, " [(@carnivalaustralia.com” < @carnivalausiralia.com>

Date: 13/02/2017 04:46 PM

Subject: RE: Sun Princess_Increase in Gastroenlerilis (Norovirus)

Thank you very much for this detailed email, [

ris ape aware that we have

I understand you have spoken separately with Fraser Gifford and that Fraser will be i to Hamilton on Thursday. |
will do my best to get down, but things are a bit frantic here at the moment — can | gi a cfll/on Thursday morning to
discuss?

Yes, it would be good to know if anyone is likely to require hospitalisation. We will make DA\
been involved.

Also, can | ask where Sun Princess will be heading after its next stop in Brisbare?

From:[ |@carnivalaustralia.com [mailto: \@carnivalaustralia.com]

Sent: Monday, 13 February 2017 2:25 PM

To: James K Smith

Cc: Megan Young; [______|@haqgroup.com; | ‘ @hagroup.com;
@carnivalaustralia.com; | g s«om; [ |@princesscruises.com;

. @carnivalaustralia.com

Subject: Sun Princess_Increase in Gastrd

Thanks again, |

Good afternoon James,
As discussed on the phone earlier
gastroenteritis during its current vo
curve is attached.

is morning, unfortGnately the Sun Princess has experienced an increase in
Onboard tesling has confirmed noravirus to be the causative agent. The epi

The ship is currently operatigrafits level 3 saMtation procedures, captain's announcements have been made and
health advisories have beefidistrtayted to all guest cabins. The ship will conduct a comprehensive sanitation of the
ship, terminal and buses during its turearaund, this Thursday the 16th. Embarkation and departure has been delayed

ames know if you anticipate any norovirus related guests that may need an
an prepare accordingly.

_|- could you pleade|&f
ambulance tomorrow, so they

| will be at the ship on Thursday, please let me know if you intend on visiting and | will arrange to me with you.
| will update you prior to arrival.

Kind regards,
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

p: +61 [ m: 61 [ | N @ carnivalaustralia.com

24/7 Public Health Emergency Line: +1-661-753-2355

The information in this email is confidential and is intended solely for the addressee(s). Access to this email
by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are not an intended recipient, you must not read, use or disseminate
the information contained in the email. Any views expressed in this message a of the individual
sender, except where the sender specifically states them to be the views of Ca @7 1y

¢ use of the intended
are not the intended

This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential g
recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you rece
recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error.

If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you
immediately notify the sender by telephone colleq
should also delete this email, and any copigs

Unless stated otherwiSe, Ris email r*presents only the views of the sender and not the views of the

Queensland Gove @
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720 S S o S s sk S e B o SR R R R Rk S SR R R R
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The information in this email is confidential and is intended solely for the addressee(s). Access to this email
by anyone else is unauthorised. If you are not an intended recipient, you must not read, use or disseminate
the information contained in the email. Any views expressed in this message are those of the individual
sender, except where the sender specifically states them to be the views of Carnival PLC.
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

@
77
&
@&
A
&

DOH-DL 17/18-015: page o 56



James K Smith

From: James K Smith

Sent: Wednesday, 1 February 2017 2:24 PM

To: Sonya Bennett; Roscoe Taylor; Megan Young
a7} MNPHU-CD

Subject: Gastro outbreak - Sun Princess

Dear Sonya and Roscoe, with a copy to Megan as on call PHP

We've been notified of 77 cases of gastro on board the cruise ship Sun Princess, comp %1 guests and 6 crew

members, Norovirus has been identified in POC testing in 4 cases.

Although there have heen small numbers (?background noise) of cases since 2 20
have taken off on 29-30 Jan 2017.

as€ numbers appear to
The vessel has been on a 12 day cruise around PNG and is due to arrive ip-Brisbane :00 am tomorrow
morning, 2,039 passengers and 859 crew members.

Level 3 sanitation procedures are underway and the ship will underga a f nal clean when in Brisbane
tomorrow, then departing 6:00 pm tomorrow evening.

Next port will be Dunedin, NZ on 14/02/2017,

il also ask the ship’s medical officer to let us know
an ¥t RBWH ED know if necessary.

DAWR are already aware, but | will follow up from this gre
if she expects any cases will require hospitalisation, s

Cheers
James

Dr James Smith

Public Health Physician

Metro North Public Health Unit
Bryden Street

Windsor Qld 4030

P: (07) 3624 1113

M.

James Smith?@health.qftVov.au
www.health.gld.qov.ay/rettonorth

Metro North Hospgija
Pu H ,';iq r—n[!

n u m follow us 0

Your feedback is important to us, so if you have any suggestions, compliments or concerns about the service or advice
provided to you, please let us know by emailing MNPHU_Director@health.gld.gov,au

oclal media
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